
























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































Appointment 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 
Location: 

_W_i_le~y~, E_v_e~ly_n~(C_M_S~/_CM_C~S)~i -------·-·-·-·-·-·(bJ(6~ ________ ~_-
~----------~(b)(6)~ __________ 
3/20/2023 1:54:45 PM 
Howe, Ror\:'.__(CMS/CMCS)i (b)(6)~-----"-~ 

(b)(G) i Maccarroll, Amber '------------~ '-------------~ 
_(C_M_S_/C_M_C_S)~i ------~(b)(_G~) ------~------

b 6 i· Silanskis, Jeremy 

,..,_(C_M_S.:_/C_M_C_S'-'-) i _______ {!>JJ~,.__------""---------
'-----,-----------!?J(~). t Arnold, Charlie 
( __ CM_S/_C_M_CS--'<j ______ ___,(b)(G)'------------'----------. 

(b)(6) j Clark, Jennifer 
'----------------' 
__ (C_M_S_/C_M_C_S)~i -----~(b){~) ____________ _ 

(b)(6) ; Goldstein, Stuart 
'---,----,-,-----------· 

;--'-(C_M_S~/C_M_C_S~)i _______ (!>Jf~L.-·-·-·-·-----~------
._ __ -,-- _________ __,pJ{~ i Mauser, Gayle 
(CMS/OL)i 

.__ ____________ ___,_!_>)_@ _______ ~------~( Boston, Beverly 
.~(C_M_S_/C_M_C_S~j _______ (i:?.}(€?.~-----~------
._ _____________ l~)1~._------------~ 

HOLD: E&C Majority lnquiry~-_H_o_ld_H_ar_m_le_s_s _____________ _ 
https://cms.zoomgov.com._!-_________ (_.~)_(§.,_) --------~ 

Start: 3/27/2023 8:00:00 PM 
End: 3/27/2023 8:30:00 PM 
Show Time As: Tentative 

Required 
Attendees: 

Howe, Rory (CMS/CMCS); Maccarroll, Amber (CMS/CMCS); Silanskis, Jeremy (CMS/CMCS); Arnold, Charlie 
(CMS/CMCS); Clark, Jennifer (CMS/CMCS); Goldstein, Stuart (CMS/CMCS); Mauser, Gayle (CMS/OL); Boston, Beverly 
(CMS/CM CS) 

Evelyn Wiley is inviting you to a scheduled ZoomGov meeting. 

Join ZoomGov Meeting _______________________ _ 

_ htt~p_s_://_c_m_s_.z_oo_m~go_v_.c_o_m/_j,_: ________ ___:(~b }_(_~). ________ _ 

Meeting ID: i (b)(6) ! 
--·-·•·-·-·-·-·-·-·--.-·-·-·-·-·-•-•-' 

Password:l___(b)(6) ___ i 

One tap mobile 

{b}{6} US (San Jose) 
~--------# US (New York) 

Dial by your location 
+ 1 669 254 5252 US (San Jose) 
+ 1 646 828 7666 US (New York) 
833 568 8864 US Toll-free 

Meeting ID) (b)(6) j 

Password(.,(b)(G) 1 
Find your local number: https://cms.zoomgov.com/u/adL6XItsKs 

Join by SIP --~ 
Password:!._ __ (b )( 6) ___ i 

CMS04712cv1712 



§iij (b)(6) ~------~ '------~ 

This meeting may be recorded. The host is responsible for maintaining any official recordings/transcripts of this meeting. 
If recorded, this meeting becomes an official record and shall be retained by the host in their files for 3 years or if longer 
needed for agency business. If a recording intends be fully transcribed or is being captured for the purpose of creating 
meeting minutes, the host shall retain the record in their files for 3 years or if no longer needed for agency business, 
whichever is later. 

CMS04713cv1712 



Appointment 

From: _W_il_e-'-'-y,_E_ve_l-'-yn_('-C_M_S-'-/C_M_C_S--'-)i.___ _______ _____,(b)(6)'-----------~-~ 

Sent: 
~-------------(.b)(6)~------------~ 
3/20/2023 2:43:40 PM 

To: _H_o_w---'e,_R_o_,ry_,(_CM_____,S/_C_M_C_S"--)! ______ ___,(b)(G)'-----------'--~ 
'--------------~(~K~~) _____________ !_M~ user, Gayle (CMS/OL) 

'-----~--------_ ....... {_b .... )"-{.._6__._) ____ ~---------' Kirchgraber, Kate 

,--'-(C_M_S_/O_L-'-'-)i _______ (.b)(G)"----------'----------, 

Subject: HOLD: E&C Majority Inquiry - Hold Harmless 
,-'------------------------, 

Location: https://cms.zoomgov.com~' _________ (.~)_(§~)--------~ 

Start: 3/28/2023 6:00:00 PM 
End: 3/28/2023 6:30:00 PM 
Show Time As: Tentative 

Required 
Attendees: 

Howe, Rory (CMS/CMCS); Mauser, Gayle (CMS/OL); Kirchgraber, Kate (CMS/OL) 

Evelyn Wiley is inviting you to a scheduled ZoomGov meeting. 

Join ZoomGov Meeting 
=htt=p=s~:/~/=cm=s.=z=oo=m=g=ov~·=c=om/==--.-ju...i _________ ____,_(bli~'--------------' 

Meeting ID: i (b)(6) i 
Password::__jb)(6) ____ i 

One tap mobile 

{b){6) i US (San Jose) 
~-------~i US (New York) 

Dial by your location 
+ 1 669 254 5252 US (San Jose) 
+ 1 646 828 7666 US (New York) 
833 568 8864 US Toll-free 

Meeting II? :_i __________ (!?.)l~L ______ j 
Password:L__ (b)(6) ___ j 
Find your local number: https://cms.zoomgov.com/u/adeXgt3PQK 

Join by SIP .---~ 
Password:! (b)(6) . .--·-·-·-·-·-·-~-,-,_,_,_,_,_,,.___. ________ ~ 

_Sl~P~! ______ ~(b~'------~ 

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

CMS04714cv1712 



Appointment 

From: _W_i_le_,_,y,'-E_v_el_,_yn__,_(C_M_S_,._/C_M_CS_,)_._i _________ {!_>)_(~,_ ________ _,___~ 

~----------~(_~)_<~~) -----------
Sent: 3/20/2023 2:41:48 PM 
To: r-H_o_w----'e,_R_o_,ry_,(_CM______,S/_C_M_C_S"-)i ______ ___,(b)(G), _______ ____;.--~ 

I (b)(G) j; Mauser, Gayle (CMS/OL) 

i--1 ---------~{b ){_6_) _________ ._____,l Kirchgraber, Kate 

~--------------------~-------~ ....:.(C_M_S....:./_0----'L).,_' _______ ....,_(~J~,__ _______ .___ ______ ~ 

~-----------~-!.>)_@ ____________ ~ 

Subject: HOLD: E&C Majority lnquir_~y_-_H_o_ld_H_a_rm_le_ss ______________ _ 

https://cms.zoomgov.com~! __________________ (b)(G)~------------' Location: 

Start: 3/27/2023 6:30:00 PM 
End: 3/27/2023 7:00:00 PM 
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
=htt=p=s~:/~/=cm=s-=z=oo=m=g=ov~-=c=otru==,_! ___________ l~)_(!>~---------~ 

Meeting ID: i (b)(G) i 
Password:[ ___ ,(b)(G) ____ j 

One tap mobile 

(b){6) ! US (San Jose) 
~--------~! US (New York) 

Dial by your location 
+ 1 669 254 5252 US (San Jose) 
+ 1 646 828 7666 US (New York) 
833 568 8864 US Toll-free 

Meeting 19-J _____ !~l~~L_ _____ __i 

Passwordt_ __ J_!_>)_(~L._.! 
Find your local number: https://cms.zoomgov.com/u/ac5Yp3SUnx 

Join by SIP 
Password:l ____ -_lb-j(-~)-___ ~_J 
§ill (b)(6) 

'-----------' 

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

CMS04715cv1712 



Appointment 

From: ~W_i_le-'-'y,_E_v_el-'-yn----'-(C_M_S-'--/C_M_CS---'-)._i -------·-·-·-·-·-·jb!(6'-- ____________ _ 

~-----------~~).{~~-----------~ 
Sent: 3/20/2023 1:49:05 PM 
To: Howe, Ror\:'._(CMS/CMCS)! (b)(6) ~------~ '---------'----, 

~------------(b)(G) _____________ : Maccarroll, Amber 
,..c.(C_M_S.c,_/C_M_C--'S)c...,_i _______ (!l.J_~..._) ______ __,_ ______ ~ 
~------------~.!>){~ i Silanskis, Jeremy 
j,_C_M~S/_C_M_C~S)"-i ______ ___,(_~)_(~,_) -------'----------, 
~------------~(b)(G)__ i Arnold, Charlie 

,-'--(C_M_S;_/C_M_C--'S).==' =======(,b)(6~) =======-----~ 
.__ ___ .,--________ __.,.'?.K~ i Clark, Jennifer 

,...:.(C_M_S....:.../_CM_CS-'============·l?,J@===========-------~ 
.__ _____________ ....... ,~H.~ i Goldstein, Stuart 

_(C_M_S_/C_M_C_S)~! _______ (,b)(6)._._·-·-·------~-------, 
~------------~.'?.K6J i Boston, Beverly 
.(~C_M--'S/~C_M_C_S),.,_i ______ ____,(~}(~),___ ______________ ~ 
! (b)(G) j; Mauser, Gayle (CMS/OL) 

{b ){6) Kirchgraber, Kate 
'---,--,r-----------~~~~-----,---------

,-'-( C_M_S~/ O_L~), _______ ( ~ ll ~--- -----~-------, 
~---------(b)(G). _________ _ 

Subject: HOLD E&C Majority lnquiry~--'-'H~o=ld~H=a~rm~le=ss _____________ ~ 

Location: https://cms.zoomgov.com~ (b)(6) 
'------------' '--------~ 

Start: 3/28/2023 6:00:00 PM 
End: 3/28/2023 6:30:00 PM 
Show Time As: Tentative 

Required 
Attendees: 

Howe, Rory (CMS/CMCS); Maccarroll, Amber (CMS/CMCS); Silanskis, Jeremy (CMS/CMCS); Arnold, Charlie 
(CMS/CMCS); Clark, Jennifer (CMS/CMCS); Goldstein, Stuart (CMS/CMCS); Boston, Beverly (CMS/CMCS); Mauser, 
Gayle (CMS/OL); Kirchgraber, Kate (CMS/OL) 

Evelyn Wiley is inviting you to a scheduled ZoomGov meeting. 

Join ZoomGov Meeting 
_htt_.,.p,__s_:/_/c_m_s_.z_o_o_m__.g..,_o_v_.c_o_m_,_i _________ __,(b )(6).__ ________ _ 

Meeting ID: l. ...... J~lt~L ....... : 
Password: L.Jb)(6) .... .i 

?ne tap mobile 

J {b){6) ! US (San Jose) 
iUS (New York) ~---------

Dial by your location 
+ 1 669 254 5252 US (San Jose) 
+ 1 646 828 7666 US (New York) 
833 568 8864 US Toll-free 

Meeting ID: L ......... JbJ(~L ...... ..i 
Password:l._jb)(G) .. ..! 
Find your local number: https://cms.zoomgov.com/u/adeXgt3PQK 

CMS04716cv1712 



Join by SIP 
Password:i-(!>-_1!-.~-==~-------~ 
~ (b)(6) ~------

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

CMS04717cv1712 



Appointment 

From: Wiley, Evelyn (CMS/CMCS)! -·-·-·-·-·· (b){6). 

Sent: 3/20/2023 3:45:32 PM 
To: Howe, Rory (CMS/CMCSj _l~)_(!>,__ ______ ~---. 

,_I ____ ·-·=======~==========(-!_>)-_(6-_).~ ____________ ----'-! ___,Muser, Gayle (CMS/OL) 

l.____~---------=-(_b.a.......;:} ('--6-=-----} -~---------' Kirchgraber, Kate 
...,_(C_M_S-=---/O_L--'-'-)! _______ {!?1{~_,_ ______ ----'--------. 

~--------~(b)(G~) --------~ 

Subject: HOLD: E&C Majority lnquir_~y_-_H_o_ld_H_a_rm_le_ss ______________ _ 

https://cms.zoomgov.com~! -------·-·-·-·-·-·(b)(G~) ________ ~ Location: 

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
=htt=p=s~:/~/=cm=s-=z=oo=m=g=ov~-=c=om/==-.i __________ _____j(b)(G). __________ _, 

Meeting ID:[ __________ (!>)(~) _______ __.! 
Password: :____(b)(6) __ ! 

<?ne tap mobile 

_j {b){6) ! US (San Jose) 
~~i ----~iUS(NewYork) 

Dial by your location 
+ 1 669 254 5252 US (San Jose) 
+ 1 646 828 7666 US (New York) 
833 568 8864 US Toll-free 

Meeting IQ~_! (b)(G) i 
Password: i (b)(6) i ' 
Find your local number: https://cms.zoomgov.com/u/ablxiy8NV5 

Join by SIP __ ____, 
Password:! (b)(6) 
sip (b)(G) 

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

CMS04718cv1712 



Appointment 

From: ,-W_il_ey_,_Ev_e_ly_n_(C_M_S_/_CM_CS_,)i ___________________ (b ){6)'---------~--. 
._ _____________ l~)_(~,__ ____________ ___, 

Sent: 5/3/2023 4:46:21 PM 
To: Howe, Rory (CMS/CMCS)i (b._)_(~~) -------~--

,___ ___ -.- ________ __.,(~.K~,_) ------~------~! Maccarroll, Amber 
_(CMS/CMcsj (b)(6) 
~i ------,----------~(b)(6) ______ ~------~( Silanskis, Jeremy 
)'-C_M_,S/_C_M_C_,S)._L-' _______ (!>)!.~,__ ______ ____;_ _____ ~ 
! {!?1!.~ i Arnold, Charlie 

,/.~C_M_S/'-C_M_C_SL) . ._ i _______ l~)_@. _________ ·-----~--------, 
(b)(G) i Kirchgraber, Kate 

'----~-------------' 
,-(C_M_S_/O_L---<.)i ______ ___,(_~)_(~.,_) ______ _____,.. ______ _____ 

Subject: Hold: Harmless request - TX_,_F_L_, V_A_an_d_N_V _______________ _ 
Location: https://cms.zoomgov.comj (b)(G) '----------~ , ________ _ 

Start: 5/9/2023 5:00:00 PM 
End: 5/9/2023 5:20:00 PM 
Show Time As: Tentative 

Required 
Attendees: 

Howe, Rory (CMS/CMCS); Maccarroll, Amber (CMS/CMCS); Silanskis, Jeremy (CMS/CMCS); Arnold, Charlie 

(CMS/CMCS); Kirchgraber, Kate (CMS/OL) 

Evelyn Wiley is inviting you to a scheduled ZoomGov meeting. 

Join ZoomGov Meeting 
_htt_p-s_:/_/_cm_s._z_oo_m~g~ov_._c_om/~j'-. _________ ___,(b)(G,_) ---------~ 

Meeting ID: i (~H_6)_ __________ _ 
Password:! (b)(G) i 

L---·-·-·-·-·-·-·-' 

One tap mobile 

(b)(6) : US (San Jose) 
!US (New York) 

'-------------~ 

Dial by your location 
+ 1 669 254 5252 US (San Jose) 
+ 1 646 828 7 666 US (New York) 
833 568 8864 US Toll-free 

Meeting IQJ _________ (b)(G) ·-·-·-·-· ! 
Password: l_ __ (b )(6) ___ : 
Find your local number: https://cms.zoomgov.com/u/acHI013lgg 

Join by SIP 
Password:!-(~-J-{~==,___ _______ ~ 
§ill (b)(G~) ----~ 

This meeting may be recorded. The host is responsible for maintaining any official recordings/transcripts of this meeting. 
If recorded, this meeting becomes an official record and shall be retained by the host in their files for 3 years or if longer 

CMS04719cv1712 



needed for agency business. If a recording intends be fully transcribed or is being captured for the purpose of creating 
meeting minutes, the host shall retain the record in their files for 3 years or if no longer needed for agency business, 
whichever is later. 

CMS04720cv1712 



Appointment 

From: ,_W_i_le~y~, E_v_e~ly_n ~( C_M_S~/_CM_C~S).._i -------·-·-·-·-·-__(b )(6)'-- ________ _,___~ 

! ~~~~ ____ ___,_(b)(G)'-----------~ 
Sent: 's/3/2023 4:45:19 PM 

To: Howe, Rory (CMS/CMCS)! (b)(G) 

'-------------~.!>){~). _____________ ~! Maccarroll, Amber 
,--'(_CM_S~/_CM_CS--"-j ______ _____..(b)(6) _______ .,__ _____ ~ 
._ _____________ (.b)(G) jSilanskis, Jeremy 

,...,(_CM____:_S/_C_M_CS--"j,'=========='b)(6L ...... .,========---------, 
._ _____________ l~)_(!>J__ !Arnold, Charlie 

_-'-(C_M_S..:..../C_M_C_S-"-j, ______ _,(p)l~_._) -------'--------, 
(b)(G) i Kirchgraber, Kate 

'--------------------'-
,-'-( C_M_S-'-/ O_L-'-<.)i ______ __,( I:?. l t ~ )L._ ______ _,__ _____ -----; 

~--------~(b)(G) _________ _ 

Subject: Hold: Harmless request - T.~,~F_L~, V_A_an_d_N_V ________________ _, 
https://cms.zoomgov.coni (b)(G) Location: 

'---------~ '-----------

Start: 5/9/2023 3:00:00 PM 

End: 5/9/2023 4:00:00 PM 

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

https://cms.zoomgov.com~i ---------~(b)(6)~--------~ 

Meeting ID:i (b)(G) : 

Password:l_ __ ~.(1?1@ ____ j 

One tap mobile 

(b}{6} ~ US (San Jose) 
~-------~¥ US (New York) 

Dial by your location 
+ 1 669 254 5252 US (San Jose) 
+ 1 646 828 7 666 US (New York) 
833 568 8864 US Toll-free 

Meeting ID:i (b)(6) , 
Password:! _____ (b)(G) _____ ! 

Find your local number: https://cms.zoomgov.com/u/abL9Uu5cfX 

Join by SIP ---. 
Pa,ssword: i (~lt~'-'----------

~ (_b)(6)'------~ 

This meeting may be recorded. The host is responsible for maintaining any official recordings/transcripts of this meeting. 
If recorded, this meeting becomes an official record and shall be retained by the host in their files for 3 years or if longer 
needed for agency business. If a recording intends be fully transcribed or is being captured for the purpose of creating 

CMS04721cv1712 



meeting minutes, the host shall retain the record in their files for 3 years or if no longer needed for agency business, 
whichever is later. 

CMS04722cv1712 



Appointment 

From: _W_i_le..:...;y,_E_v_el-=--yn-----=---(C_M_S..:..../C_M_CS---'-),_i _____________ (b)(6.._) ----------~ 
~-------------~-1?.KSJ ______________ ~ 

Sent: 5/3/2023 4:47:57 PM 
To: ~H_o_w---'e,_R_o_,ry_,(_CM_____,S/_C_M_C_S'-'-)i ______ _____,(_b)(6)'------______ ____,___~ 

(b)(G) i Maccarroll, Amber 
~(C_M_S--,-/C_M_C_S.,.,...)i ------------,(,....,b)_,(6) ______ ~ ____ -_ ----------~ 

'--------------~(b)(G)'-------~------~i Silanskis, Jeremy 
r-'(_CM_S_/_CM_CS--'-'-)i ______ ___,(b)(6)'---------------. 
'------:==========lb)@____ i Arnold, Charlie 

_(C_M_S_/C_M_C~Si~------(~lt~-) ------~-----------, 
.__ _____________ lb..)1~ i Kirchgraber, Kate 

_(C_M_S/_O_L)~i -----~(b)(6) ______________ ~ 

Subject: Hold: Harmless request - T_X_,_F_L_, V_A_an_d_N_V ________________ _ 

https://cms.zoomgov.com~i ---------~!>J!I?~--------~ Location: 

Start: 5/9/2023 7:00:00 PM 
End: 5/9/2023 8:00:00 PM 
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

=htt=p=s=:/-=-/c=m=s=.z=o~o=m=g=o~v..:...;.c~o=mA~l'-----------~(b)(G) __________ ~ 

Meeting ID :L_ _______ __(b )(6) ·-·-·-·-·-·i 
Password:l__ __ (b)(G) ___i 

,One tap mobile 

! {b){6) f US (San Jose) 
i~-~--l US (New York) 

Dial by your location 
+ 1 669 254 5252 US (San Jose) 
+ 1 646 828 7666 US (New York) 
833 568 8864 US Toll-free 

Meeting ID:! l?Jl6) __________ 
0 

Password! (b)(G) i 
Find your local number: https://cms.zoomgov.com/u/abnWjO0iYW 

Join by SIP 
,---. 

Password:! (b)(6) 

-~..._,i _____ __,_(b)(G~) ____ _ 

This meeting may be recorded. The host is responsible for maintaining any official recordings/transcripts of this meeting. 
If recorded, this meeting becomes an official record and shall be retained by the host in their files for 3 years or if longer 
needed for agency business. If a recording intends be fully transcribed or is being captured for the purpose of creating 

CMS04723cv1712 



meeting minutes, the host shall retain the record in their files for 3 years or if no longer needed for agency business, 
whichever is later. 

CMS04724cv1712 



Appointment 

From: ,-W_i_le~y~, E_v_e~ly_n~(C_M_S~/_CM_C~S~~! --------~(b)(6~) -----------. 
._ _____________ lb..)_(~,__ ____________ ___, 

Sent: 
To: 

5/3/2023 4:49:59 PM 
Howe, Rory (CMS/CMCS)i (b)(G) 

~------------~b..)_(~~------------~i Maccarroll, Amber 
~(C_M_S~/C_M_C~S)"--i _______ (.b)(6) _______________ -'--------, 

(b)(G) I Silanskis, Jeremy 
'-------------------" 

,--'-(C_M_S_/_CM_CS--'-')i _______ ....,(bll~-------------~ 
.....,_--,----,-,=========='·!_>)_@ ! Arnold, Charlie 
,_(C_M_S_/C_M_C_S~)i _______ ~(b)_(?~------~--------, 

(b)(G) ! Kirchgraber, Kate ~--~---------~ 
;-(~C_M~S/_O_L) . .._! _______ lb._)_@ ______ ~------~ 
!.___ ___________ (.b)(G).___ __________ ~ 

Subject: Hold: Harmless request - T_X_,_F_L_, V_A_an_d_N_V ______________ ~ 

https://cms.zoomgov.com~! _______________ (b)(G~)--------~ Location: 

Start: 5/10/2023 8:00:00 PM 
End: 5/10/2023 8:30:00 PM 
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

=htt=p=s~:/~/=cm=s.=z=oo=m=g=ov~·=c=om/==-.-jL. __________ __l_(.b)(6) __________ ~ 

Meeting ID: l_ _________ {~)J~L. _______ j 
PasswordL. __ (b)(G) ____ i 

One tap mobile 

(b){6) f US (San Jose) 
._ ________ __,t US (New York) 

Dial by your location 
+ 1 669 254 5252 US (San Jose) 
+ 1 646 828 7666 US (New York) 
833 568 8864 US Toll-free 

Meeting ID: L_ _______ __(_b._)J~L. _____ ___: 
PasswordL.J!>}t6)___.1 
Find your local number: https://cms.zoomgov.com/u/aceerj5Czk 

Join by SIP d,-, ---, 
Pa~_s_w.m:. __ ;1 __ J!.>).@ ____ !~--------

~~---~(b)(6~) ----~ 

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

From: Wiley, Evelyn (CMS/CMCS)i (b)(6) 

~---------------'·l?.K6J ______________ ~ 
Sent: 5/3/2023 4:48:45 PM 
To: Howe, Rory __ (CMS/CMCS)_._i _______ _,!?ll6-'-- _______ ....__ __ 

(b)(6) i Maccarroll, Amber ~------------~ '--------------~ 
(CMS/CMCS)~i -----~(b)(6)L__ _____ _,_ ______ , 

i (b)(G) ~ Silanskis, Jeremy 

_~(C_M_S_/C_M_C~S)~i ------~(!?_)l~~) ------~-----~ 
~------------~(b)(6) ! Arnold, Charlie 

_(~CM~S/_CM_CS~)~i _______ (!>X~~-----~~-----. 
i (b)(6) 

'----------------' 

Subject: Hold: Harmless request - T2(-'-, _FL_,_,_V_A_a_n_d_N_V _______________ ~ 

Location: https://cms.zoomgov.co ! (b)(6) ~--------~ ~--------~ 

Start: 5/10/2023 6:00:00 PM 
End: 5/10/2023 6:30:00 PM 
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
_htt_p.__s_:/_/_cm_s._z_oo_m____._,g~ov_._c_om---<-; ___________ _,(b)(G)'------------~ 

Meeting ID: i (!l,.)l~L ______ _ 
Password;l___(b )( 6) ___ i 

One tap mobile 

(b){6) ! US (San Jose) 
~---------! US (New York) 

Dial by your location 
+ 1 669 254 5252 US (San Jose) 
+ 1 646 828 7 666 US (New York) 
833 568 8864 US Toll-free 

Meeting ID:i (b)(6) i 
Password:l___(_b)(6)___i ' 
Find your local number: https://cms.zoomgov.com/u/ab65dwEfi6 

Join by SIP ---
Password:i (.l?Ji~,_) --'---------~ 
filPJ (_b)(G)~---~ 

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

CC: 

Subject: 
Location: 

Start: 
End: 

,-W_ile~y~, E_v_el~yn~(C_M_S~/C_M_C_S~~L----------'(_b)(G,_) __________ _ 
~-----------(b)(6~) __________ _ 
3/14/2023 11:07:17 PM ,------------------, 
Howe, Rory_.(CMS/CMCS).i'--------~(b~)~(6~)-------~--. 

'-------------~(b)(6)._. ______ ~-----~~ Maccarroll, Amber 
._(CMS/CMCS)l •..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..• .Jb)(61 ..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•..•. !_ -------, 
.__ ____________ __,_(b)(6). i Silanskis, Jeremy 

~(C_M_S_/C_M_C~S)~i ------~(b)(6) ______ ~-----~ 
'-------,,-----------,,-----------'(_t>l{~) : Arno Id, Charlie 

0(~C_M_S/._C_M_C_SL~-------~ll~L._ _______ ~----------; 
(b)(G) : Clark, Jennifer 

'---,---~========== 
,-(C_M_S_/C_M_C_S~)i ------~(b)(6}._._·-·-·-·-----~-------. 
'------,----------~~JC~ ! Goldstein, Stuart 
__(CMS/CMCS)_~i ------~(b)(6), _______ ~------

(_~)_(§) l Boston, Beverly '---,---===========' 
~(C_M_S_/C_M_C_S-'=~ ==========(b)(6) ·-·-·-·-·-

l----------'-((b~~)L6._,_(

6
_) ______________ i_Mauser, Gayle (CMS/OL) 

: Kirchgraber, Kate '--------------~~~~-----------~ 
,.....,_(_CM_S....c./_O-'-L)i.___ _____ ___,(b)(6), ______ _____, ______ _ 

'--------------~~)_(?~----~-------~! Martino, Maria 
_(CMS/Olli (b)(G), =-~----_j-----------. 
i .__ _______ , -(b)(G) i; Chadwick, Alpheus 

_(~C_M~S/_O_L),~! ------~.!>)!~~------~-------; 
._! -----~-----__,(_b)(G._) --------~----' 
,-H_o_w_e_ll,_C_h_er_ie_(_C_M_S_/O_L~)i.__ _______ .(b)(6).__ ______ ___,_ ___ ___, 

'--------------~.!.>).@ _____________ ~ 

Confirmed: Call with Rep. Al Green's Office - Hold Harmless 
https://cms.zoomgov.corri (b)(G) 

'-----------

3/29/2023 7:00:00 PM 
3/29/2023 7:30:00 PM 

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
Gayle (CMS/OL); Kirchgraber, Kate (CMS/OL); Martino, Maria (CMS/OL); Chadwick, Alpheus (CMS/OL) 

Optional 
Attendees: 

Howell, Cherie (CMS/OL) 

Evelyn Wiley is inviting you to a scheduled ZoomGov meeting. 

Join ZoomGov Meeting 
_htt~p~s_:/_/c_m_s_.z_o_o_m~g~o_v_.c_o_m---i.! ____________ (b)(G).__ __________ ____. 

Meeting IQ.:_i (b)(G) i 
Password:! (b)(6) i ' 

One tap mobile 

(b)(6) 
'----------~ 

US (San Jose) 
US (New York) 

CMS04728cv1712 



Dial by your location 
+ 1 669 254 5252 US (San Jose) 
+ 1 646 828 7666 US (New York) 
833 568 8864 US Toll-free 

Meeting ID L_ _______ J~l(~L ______ ___: 
Password::_ ____ (b)(6) ____ j 
Find your local number: https://cms.zoomgov.com/u/abvzAPikTY 

Join by SIP 
.----. 

Password: i (b)(G) ·--~------~ 
_si~p ______ _,_(~.l(§.). _____ _____, 

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

From: M i c ro so ft Out I o o kl.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.~ b) t 6J.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,. i, _____ _, 
._ ______________ (~)_(~,__ _____________ ~ 

Sent: 5/5/2023 1:18:09 PM 
To: Howe, Rory (CMS/CMCS)i (b)(G)'---------------. 

~---------(_b)(G)~--------~ 

Subject: Meeting Forward Notification: Texas Hold Harmless Litigation 

Location: https://cms.zoomgov.co ! _______ (b)(6,~---------

Start: 5/5/2023 2:00:00 PM 
End: 5/5/2023 2:30:00 PM 

Recurrence: (none) 

Your meeting was forwarded 

Howe, Rory (CMS/CMCS) has forwarded your meeting request to additional recipients. 

Texas Hold Harmless Litigation 

Friday, May 5, 2023 10:00 AM-10:30 AM. 

Maccarroll, Amber (CMS/CMCS) 
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Appointment 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 
Location: 

Start: 
End: 

~H_o_w_e_ll,_C_h_er_ie_(_C_M_S_/O_L~)i _________________ (b)(6)~--------~-~ 
; 

; ~~~~~ ______ __,(_b)(G,_) -----------~ 
;_5/5/2023 2:03:53 PM 

,_H_o_w_e,_R_o_ry_(_CM_S/_C_M_C_S..._Ji ______ ___,(b)(GL..) --------~-~ 
(b)(6) i Kirchgraber, Kate '-------------- '--------------~ 

,...:...(C_M_S.c._/O_L-'-J..)i _______ l~).(!>) _______________ ~ 

'-------------~1?1l6~------~------!Wiley, Evelyn 
r(_CM_S_/_CM_CS--'-'-)i ______ ___,(b)(G) _______________ ----'-------. 

lb)@____ ! Chadwick, Alpheus 

,...:...(C_M_S..:_/O_L-"==========='·!_>)_@,=========-----------, 
._ ____________ ~(!?.)l~~) --------------~ Martino, Maria 
~(C_M_S_/O_L--'-)! _______ (,b)(G)'--------~------~ 
~-----------(~}(6J ___________ _ 

Texas CMS Bulletin on Ho~ld_H_a_rm_le_s_s A_g~r_e_em_en_t_s ____________ ~ 

https://cms.zoomgov.coni ________ (b)(G), ________ ~ 

5/10/2023 8:00:00 PM 
5/10/2023 8:30:00 PM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Required 
Attendees: 

Howe, Rory (CMS/CMCS); Kirchgraber, Kate (CMS/OL); Wiley, Evelyn (CMS/CMCS); Chadwick, Alpheus (CMS/OL); 
Martino, Maria (CMS/OL) 

This call is with staff from the offices of Rep. Fletcher (D-TX), Rep. Allred (D-TX) and Rep. Casar (D-TX) who asked to 
discuss Texas hospitals concerns with the CMS Informational Bulletin regarding hold harmless agreements. Rep. Casar's 
also has questions whether in 2021, CMS withheld supplemental payments to Texas due to the state government allowing 
hold harmless agreements to continue and whether that was later overturned by the court. 

Cherie Howell is inviting you to a scheduled ZoomGov meeting. 

Join ZoomGov Meeting 

_h_tt~p_s:~//~c_m_s_._zo_o_m~g~o_v_.c_o_m---'i....J ---------------'-(b )(6)'----------~ 

Meeting I DL_ _______ (b)(6) _______ ___! 

Passwordt__ (b)(6) ____ j 

One tap mobile 

{b){6) ! US (San Jose) 

~----~! US (New York) 

Dial by your location 

+1 669 254 5252 US (San Jose) 

+1 646 828 7666 US (New York) 

833 568 8864 US Toll-free 

Meeting I DL_ ________ (b)(6) __________ ! 

Find your local number: https://cms.zoomgov.com/u/aemg4A592e 

Join by SIP 

CMS04731cv1712 



Password:L.___(b)(6) ____ i 
?.!E (b)(G)~---~ 

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

From: Mauser, Gayle (CMS/OL)! 

._ ____________ __,(b)(6)'-------------------' 
Sent: 2/22/2023 5:10:31 PM 
To: ,-H_o_w_e,_R_o_ry_(C_M_S_/C_M_CS~Ji._ ______ ~(b)(6). ________ ~-~ 

'----,---------~~ll6)____ ! Silanskis, Jeremy 
(CMS/CMCS)~i ------~(_~)_(~) 

:- • (~!>)-.!-.~-------------~! Maccarroll, Amber 

(CMS/CMcs· ( b )( 6) ·-·-·-·-·-
'--:---=============·b~Jc!:,l6±=-=========c-------~! Arnold, Charlie 
(CMS/CM CS)! ~)1~). 

~-,---,-----------~~l(§) _____ -,--------~i Kirchgraber, Kate 
__,_(C_M_S-'-/O_L~)i _______ l~)_(~.__------~------~ 

CC: 
._ ___________ ___,(b)(6) ____________ ___,..-~ 
,-B_o_st_on~,_B_e_ve_r~ly~(C_M~S/_C_M_C_S~)i ________ (!>X~~------~------. 
._ ____________ (!>X~~-----------~ 

Subject: [Internal OL/CMCS] E&C Majority Inquiry - Hold Harmless 
Location: https://cms.zoomgov.com; ________ (b)16.~-------~ 

Start: 2/22/2023 8:30:00 PM 
End: 2/22/2023 9:00:00 PM 
Show Time As: Tentative 

Required 
Attendees: 

Howe, Rory (CMS/CMCS); Silanskis, Jeremy (CMS/CMCS); Maccarroll, Amber (CMS/CMCS); Arnold, Charlie 
(CMS/CMCS); Kirchgraber, Kate (CMS/OL) 

Optional 

Attendees: 

Boston, Beverly (CMS/CMCS) 

Gayle Mauser is inviting you to a scheduled ZoomGov meeting. 

Join ZoomGov Meeting 

'-'-ht=t"'-p-'--'s:L..<//--"c-'-'-m-'-"s-'-'.z=o--"-o-'-'-m"'"'"g=o-'-v.'--'-c-'-o'-'-mCL../._i --------~(b)(6) __________ ~ 

Meeting ID :: __________ .(~ll6) __________ ] 
Password t_ __ .(b..)1~L._j 

One tap mobile 

(b)(6) i US (San Jose) 
f US (New York) '---------~ 

Dial by your location 
+1 669 254 5252 US (San Jose) 
+1 646 828 7666 US (New York) 
833 568 8864 US Toll-free 

Meeting ID : __________ .(~ll6) __________ ] 
Find your local number: https://cms.zoomgov.com/u/adsmAlohbs 

Join by SIP 
---. 

Password:i ____ (b)(6),~-----------, 
sipi (b)(6) 

CMS04733cv1712 



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

__ W_i_le~y,_E_v_el~yn~(C_M_S~/C_M_CS~)-~i ---------~~l(!>~--------~--

~------------(.b)(G)~-----------~ 
3/20/2023 2:49:28 PM 

~H_o_w_e,_R_o_ry_(_CM_S/_C_M_C_S~)i ------~(b)(G) _______ ~---
J (b)(G) i Mauser, Gayle (CMS/OL) 
1-1 ____________ (_,_b} ('--6-} ___________ __,---·-~ Kirchgraber, Kate 

0

_(C_M_S_/O_L_,_)i _______ (,b)(6.,_) ______ __,_ ______ _____ 

~----------~(b)(G) ____________ ~ 

Canceled: Canceled: HOLD: E&C Majority Inquiry - Hold Harmless 

3/27/2023 8:00:00 PM 
3/27/2023 8:30:00 PM 

Show Time As: Free 

Required 
Attendees: 

Howe, Rory (CMS/CMCS); Mauser, Gayle (CMS/OL); Kirchgraber, Kate (CMS/OL) 
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Appointment 

From: CMS CMCS Schedulingi (b)(6) 

~-----------(!>)(~-·~-----------
Sent: 5/1/2023 7:49:52 PM 
To: Stacie Weeks [sweeks@dhcfp.nv.gov]; Amber Law [a.law@dhcfp.nv.gov]; Tsai, Daniel (CMS/CMCS) 

Subject: 

Location: 

Start: 
End: 

{b }{6} :Costello, Anne Marie 
~---~------------------~------~ 
(CMS/CMCS)i (b)(6) 

~------------~(b)(G) ______ ~------~i Vitolo, Sara 
(CMS/CMCS)i (b)(6) ________________ ~----~ 

, l?..)_(?J__ ! Hebert, Krista 

( CMS/CM cs )l.:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:,{b )(6) ·.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:.-:! ______ _ 

(b)(G) i Briskin, Perrie 

/~C_M~S/~C_M_C_S),~i ------~b)(6} ________________ ~--------, 
! (~!(~) i Delone, Sarah 

_ _,_(C_M_S...:..../C_M_C_S....,_.J!========"-~!l~-"==========----------, 
(b)(G) !Deboy, Alissa 

~(C_M_S--,-/C_M_C_S,..,..)i ______ ______,,(b,.....,)--='(6) ______ ~~------
(b)(6) j Bonelli, Anna .__ ____________ __, 

_(C_M_S_/C_M_C_Sl,_. ______ _,_(b)(G,_) --------'------~ 
~-----.-----------~l.(~J_ i Howe, Rory 
_(C_M_S_/C_M_c_s_,_j ______ __,(_b)(G,_) ------~------
~----,----------ll?..li~ jWeaver, Brent 
_(C_M_S_/C_M_C~S~~------(b)(G~) ------~------

(b)(G) i Kostesich, Jennifer ~---~---------~ 
--'-(C_M_S..:.._/C_M_C_S.:.b)i ======~~-U~J. __________ _ 

~-----------~(b)(G) ______________ ~ 

Nevada/CMCS 
TBD 

5/17/2023 9:00:00 PM 
5/17/2023 9:30:00 PM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Required 
Attendees: 

Stacie Weeks; Amber Law; Daniel Tsai (CMS/OA) (daniel.tsai@cms.hhs.gov); annemarie.costello@cms.hhs.gov; Sara 
Vitolo (CMS/FCHCO) (Sara.Vitolo@cms.hhs.gov); Hebert, Krista (CMS/CMCS); Perrie Briskin (CMS/OA) 
(perrie.briskin@cms.hhs.gov); Delone, Sarah (CMS/CMCS); Deboy, Alissa M. (CMS/CMCS); Bonelli, Anna 
(CMS/CMCS); Howe, Rory (CMS/CMCS) (Rory.Howe@cms.hhs.gov); Brent Weaver (CMS/CCSQ) 
(brent.weaver@cms.hhs.gov); Kostesich, Jennifer (CMS/CMCS) 

Agenda: 

• DACA Requirements (Biden EO) 

• ILOS - Housing/Food Supports 

• Children's Behavioral Health & DOJ 

• Provider Tax and Payments to Private Hospitals - Hold Harmless Proof 

• 1115 dental waiver 

• New idea for adult dental coverage 

CMS04736cv1712 



Appointment 

From: ~M_a_u_se_r-'-, _G_ay'-le___;_(C_M_S--'--/_O_;L)'-'-i _________ _,(,bK6..,,_ _________ ..__ __ ~ 

Sent: 3/27/2023 3:44:24 PM 
To: _K_irc_h-=g'-ra_b_e_:.r,_K_a_te_('-C_M_S-'--/O_L....:.)-=! ===========~K~'==========---~ 

~------------~(_b)(G) ______________ ~f Howe, Rory 
.J~CM~S/_CM_CS~)~i------~~H-~.'--------~----~ 
'--------~ ___ ___,(~~~)~--------~-~ 
_W_i_le-'--y,_E_ve_ly'-n---'(_C_M_S/_C_M_C_S'-'-)i ------------'(b)(G)'--------~-~ CC: 

~-----------~(b)(G).__ ___________ ~ 

Subject: Confirmed I E&C Minority Staff Briefing - Hold Harmless 
Location: https://cms.zoomgov.com/j (b)(G) ~-------~ 

Start: 
End: 

4/4/2023 3:00:00 PM 
4/4/2023 3:30:00 PM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Required 
Attendees: 
Optional 
Attendees: 

Kirchgraber, Kate (CMS/OL); Howe, Rory (CMS/CMCS) 

Wiley, Evelyn (CMS/CMCS) 

Gayle Mauser is inviting you to a scheduled ZoomGov meeting. 

Join ZoomGov Meeting 

https://cms.zoomgov.com/jJ.__ _______ ~(_bl(~_).__ _______ ~ 

Meeting ID t_ _________ (~)J~L. ________ J 
Password:!.__ (b)(G) ___! 

One tap mobile 

(b)(6) ! US (San Jose) 

~--~--~! US (New York) 

Dial by your location 
+1 669 254 5252 US (San Jose) 
+1 646 828 7666 US (New York) 
833 568 8864 US Toll-free 

Meeting I ol_ ________ (b)(G) _______ ___i 

Find your local number: https://cms.zoomgov.com/u/acGrgS0FQv 

Join by SIP 
Password:!-(b-)-(6-) ~ 

sip (b)(G) ~-----~ 

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

CMS04738cv1712 



Appointment 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 

CC: 

Subject: 
Location: 

Start: 
End: 

_W_i_le_y,_E_ve_ly_n_(_C_M_S/_C_M_C_S~)i _________ (.b)(6).__ _______ ~--

.__ ____________ __,(!?_)!,~,_) ----------------' 
3/27/2023 8:49:16 PM 

Howe, RoryjCMS/CMCS).~i -------~~ll6) __________ _ 

~------.-------------(b)(G) -------,---------~! Maccarroll, Amber 
( CMS/CM cs) L.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.-(b )16L~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~.~i _____ _ 

~-------------l~)_(!>L ( Silanskis, Jeremy 
(CMS/CMCS)i (b)(6) 

'------,-----------l~)_(!>) ______ ----,-------~i Clark, Jennifer 
(CMS/CMCS)i (b){6) 
~------------~·'""~-)_(-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~:~~~~~~~~~~~~~=! Goldstein, Stuart 
(CMS/CMCS)i (b)(G) 

b 6 i Boston, Beverly '-----~---------_.,_,~-------------~ 

r
(CMS/CMCS)_~i ______ (~)_@ ____________ _ 

1--------------"""'(b)(G)_, : .~auser, Gayle (CMS/OL) 

I (b H,__6 ....... } ___ ~ ______ i Kirchgraber, Kate 

0

(CMS/OL)! b 6 

!.__ ____________ ___,_~).{~...._------------~ 

Arnold, Charlie (CMS/CMCS)i (b)(G) 

'----~---------___,,(~1l~).__ ____ ~-----------'i Martino, Maria 
,.c..(C_M_S_/O_L"-'-)i ______ __,(b)(G)'----------------------~ 
-----------------~)1~). _____________ _,!_.~owell, Cherie (CMS/OL) 

; 

{b }{6} ! Chadwick, Alpheus 

('-'-C'-'-M""S/c...:Oc..::L,),_i _______ -'-'W§.1- __________ '---------

~--------~(b)(G) _________ _ 

Prep Call for on Hold Harmless Guidance with Rep. Al Green's Office 

https://cms.zoomgov.comi ........ (b)16~-------~ 

3/28/2023 3:30:00 PM 
3/28/2023 4:00:00 PM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Required 
Attendees: 

Optional 
Attendees: 

Howe, Rory (CMS/CMCS); Maccarroll, Amber (CMS/CMCS); Silanskis, Jeremy (CMS/CMCS); Clark, Jennifer 
(CMS/CMCS); Goldstein, Stuart (CMS/CMCS); Boston, Beverly (CMS/CMCS); Mauser, Gayle (CMS/OL); Kirchgraber, 
Kate (CMS/OL) 
Arnold, Charlie (CMS/CMCS); Martino, Maria (CMS/OL); Howell, Cherie (CMS/OL); Chadwick, Alpheus (CMS/OL) 

Order of Events: 
• Tuesday 3/28 - internal prep for briefing with Rep. Green's (TX) office on how the hold harmless letter relates to 

Texas (Draft talking points below; FMG reviewing/seeking CMCS OCD clearance). We will also plan to use this 

time to ensure we're all on the same page regarding the bullets that follow. 

• Wednesday 3/29 - call with Rep. Green's (TX) office 

• Thursday, 3/30 - issuance of Missouri deferral; OL will notify authorizing committee staff and the Missouri 

delegation (OL drafting QAs we expect from the Hill) 
• Tuesday, 4/4 - briefing with E&C minority staff on the hold harmless guidance more generally, what states may 

have hold harmless arrangements, etc. 

Draft Talking Points for Rep. Green Call (3/29) 

CMS04 739cv1712 



• We know you are interested in particular on Texas, but we thought it might be helpful to first provide some 

general context about the guidance you asked about: 

o As you know, on February 17, 2023, CMS issued a Medicaid informational bulletin regarding health care­

related taxes and hold harmless arrangements involving the redistribution of Medicaid payments. 

o Hold harmless arrangements, as defined in the Medicaid statute, are arrangements in which the State or 

another unit of government imposing the tax provides (directly or indirectly) for any payment, offset, or 
waiver that guarantees to hold taxpayers harmless for any portion of the costs of the tax. The statute 

prohibits these arrangements. 

o Recently, we have been approached by several states with questions about complying with this 

provision of law, and we have also learned of states that may have existing arrangements or are 

considering establishing them, particularly with respect to states establishing or renewing Medicaid 

managed care state directed payments. 

o The informational bulletin reiterates the federal requirements concerning hold harmless arrangements 

with respect to health care-related taxes. We hope that this guidance provides additional clarity to 
states, and we also encourage them to raise any questions or concerns they may have about the 

permissibility of health care-related taxes to CMS as early in the process as possible, to avoid any issues. 

• With respect to Texas specifically: 

o As you know, Texas has in place what is known as the Local Provider Payment Fund or LPPF. Based on 

information obtained by CMS, including limited information provided by the state and publicly available 

third-party materials, the LPPF arrangements used by some localities in Texas appear to include hold 

harmless arrangements because the localities impose a tax and the state directly or indirectly provides 

for payments that guarantee to hold the taxpayers harmless for all or any portion of the tax amount. If 

our understanding of those LPPF arrangements is correct, they constitute hold harmless arrangements 

that are prohibited under the Medicaid statute and CMS regulations. [this language is pulled from the 

publicly available November 2021 letter to the State; page 5 includes additional detail regarding our 

understanding of the arrangement] 

o CMS has communicated these concerns to the state and, when we recently approved Texas' state 

directed payments, we included in our approval letter that approval of the state directed payments does 

not constitute any specific Medicaid financing mechanism used to support the non-federal share of the 

provider payment arrangement. We also clarified that we reserve the authority to enforce 

requirements, including by initiating separate deferrals and/or disallowances of federal financial 

participation. 

o As you may be aware, the HHS OIG announced in November 2021 that it is examining states' use of 

LPPFs as the state share of Medicaid payments, and that it expects to issue a report in FY 2023 that 
indicates whether the LPPFs the state agency used were permissible! (b)(S) 

~-----~ .. !.>l@ ______ ~ 
• As is the case with any state, if CMS or an oversight agency discovers the existence of impermissible financing 

practices related to health care related taxes, CMS will take enforcement action as necessary. 

Draft Talking Points for E&C Minority Call (4/4) 
• As you know, on February 17, 2023, CMS issued a Medicaid informational bulletin regarding health care-related 

taxes and hold harmless arrangements involving the redistribution of Medicaid payments. 

• Hold harmless arrangements, as defined in the Medicaid statute, are arrangements in which the State or 

another unit of government imposing the tax provides (directly or indirectly) for any payment, offset, or waiver 

that guarantees to hold taxpayers harmless for any portion of the costs of the tax. The statute prohibits these 

arrangements. 

• This is not new policy! (pJJ§,,_) ___________ ....__~ 

(b)(5) 
~-----(!>X?.~-----

• Recently, we have been approached by several states with questions about complying with this provision of law, 

and we have also learned of states that may have existing arrangements or are considering establishing them, 

particularly with respect to states establishing or renewing Medicaid managed care state directed payments. 
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• We hope that this guidance provides additional clarity to states, and we also encourage them to raise any 

questions or concerns they may have about the permissibility of health care-related taxes to CMS as early in the 

process as possible, to avoid any issues. 

• Regarding your question about which states may have these types of arrangements, there are 3 states that CMS 

understands may have impermissible hold harmless arrangements, and 1 state we wanted to mention as an 

example of where we were able to intervene early in the process of establishing what may have been an 
impermissible hold harmless arrangement. 

• Starting with the 3 states that may have these arrangements: 

o Texas: 
■ Texas has in place what is known as the Local Provider Payment Fund or LPPF. Based on 

information obtained by CMS, including limited information provided by the state and publicly 

available third-party materials, the LPPF arrangements used by some localities in Texas appear 

to include hold harmless arrangements because the localities impose a tax and the state directly 

or indirectly provides for payments that guarantee to hold the taxpayers harmless for all or any 
portion of the tax amount. If our understanding of those LPPF arrangements is correct, they 

constitute hold harmless arrangements that are prohibited under the Medicaid statute and CMS 

regulations. [this language is pulled from the publicly available November 2021 letter to the 

State; page 5 includes additional detail regarding our understanding of the arrangement] 
■ CMS has communicated these concerns to the state and, when we recently approved Texas' 

state directed payments, we included in our approval letter that approval of the state directed 

payments does not constitute any specific Medicaid financing mechanism used to support the 

non-federal share of the provider payment arrangement. We also clarified that we reserve the 

authority to enforce requirements, including by initiating separate deferrals and/or 

disallowances of federal financial participation. 
■ As you may be aware, the HHS OIG announced in November 2021 that it is examining states' use 

of LPPFs as the state share of Medicaid payments, and that it expects to issue a report in FY 

2023 that indicates whether the LPPFs the state agency used were permissible-!__ ______ (b)(S) _____ ___: 

~ ______ (.b)(5) ______ ~ 
o Florida: 

■ Similarly, Florida has in place an LPPF that we also understand includes hold harmless 

arrangements. 
■ In Florida's case, we were working with the state for some time in an effort to address the 

concerns, but have been unable to resolve them. Like Texas, we communicated our concerns to 

the state and, when we recently approved Florida's state directed payments, we provided the 
same information as was included in the letter to Texas-that the approval does not constitute 

approval of the Medicaid financing mechanism, and that we reserve the authority to enforce 

requirements. 
■ In late February, we sent a letter to Florida initiating a Financial Management Review (FMR) to 

examine the state Medicaid agency's compliance with federal requirements over the next 

several months. 

o Missouri: 
■ As you know, we took deferral action in Missouri last week. 

■ Missouri has a longstanding arrangement called the Federal Reimbursement Allowance tax 

program that appears to include a hold harmless arrangement, and in 2019, we became aware 

of details of the arrangement that outlined hold harmless aspects. In 2020, CMS engaged the 

state about its concerns. Also in 2020, the then CMCS Director sent a letter to the state 

describing our concerns and memorializing a conversation with state Medicaid agency 

leadership who at that time committed to ending the hold harmless arrangement by June 30, 

2021. 
■ Contrary to its commitment documented in the July 28, 2020 letter, the state recently informed 

CMS that it does not intend to end its pooling arrangement. 
■ In late February, we sent a letter to Missouri initiating a focused review of Missouri's program 

expenditures reported to CMS on the Form CMS-64, and as part of the review of the CMS-64 for 
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the December 31, 2022 quarter, on February 17, 2023, we sent the state some questions to 

confirm our understanding of the Missouri FRA program and pooling arrangement. On March 

10, 2023, the state responded to CMS with responses that supported our continued concerns 

regarding the tax and, last week, we issued a deferral. 

■ If asked about the size of the deferral: The $236.6 million dollar deferral represents the federal 

portion of the FRA tax collected by the state for the first quarter of 2023. The Medicaid 
statute (1903(w)(l)(A)(iii)) does not permit only deferring a portion of an unallowable tax. 

Importantly, though, the state could preserve its entire tax collection by ending the 

redistributions, which we understand involves only a portion of the FRA tax collected. 

• With respect to the state I mentioned where we were successful in intervening early: 

o Louisiana: 
■ In X month and year, we received information that suggested Louisiana's legislature was 

developing what would have been a hold harmless arrangement as part of the financing 

mechanism for its state directed payment program. We engaged the state about those issues, 
worked with the state on alternatives that would comply with federal law, and ultimately the 

state withdrew the state directed payment proposal it had submitted and submitted a modified 

proposal. 

• We are hopeful that the guidance we issued will further promote our efforts to work with states and get ahead 

of these issues as we did in Louisiana. 

Evelyn Wiley is inviting you to a scheduled ZoomGov meeting. 

Join ZoomGov Meeting 
_htt~p~s_:/_/c_m_s_.z_o_o_m~g~o_v_.c_o_iru---,; _________ ___,(b )(6), __________ _, 

Meeting ID: i_ _______ _(~)_(~L. ______ J 
Password: l___(b)(6) ___ ! 

One tap mobile 

{b){6) ! US (San Jose) 
iUS (New York) ~-----------' 

Dial by your location 
+ 1 669 254 5252 US (San Jose) 
+ 1 646 828 7 666 US (New York) 
833 568 8864 US Toll-free 

Meeting II?_:L._ ______ JI_>)@ _______ ___: 
Password: L. (b)(6) __ ! 
Find your local number: https://cms.zoomgov.com/u/awRNHQtUU 

Join by SIP ---~ 
Password:i ____ (b)(6),___ __________ ~ 
fill2 (b )(6).__ ____ __, 

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

Giles, John (CMS/CMCS) [John.Giles1@cms.hhs.gov] 
3/16/2023 6:59:52 PM 
Shannon Attanasio [sattanasio@mhpa.org]; Craig Kennedy [CKennedy@mhpa.org]; Jeanine Boyle 
[J Boyle@m h pa. org]; Gibson, Alexis ( CMS/CM CS )L_ ________________ ·:_· ____________________________ {l?.llf:1_) ____ ·:_· _______________ ~----' 

(b)(6) i Burch Mack, Rebecca 
'-----------------' 
(CMS/CMCS)~i ------~(b)(6)'-- _____ _,_ ______ 

0 

(b)(6) ; Snyder, Laura 
'-----------------' 
_~(C_M_S_/C_M_C~S).~' _______ (b)(6~) ------~-----~ 

(b)(6) i Jones, Elizabeth 
'---,---,.-----------· 

,_(C_M_S_/C_M_C_S~J. ------~(b)(G). _______ ~----~ 
(b)(6) ( Gentile, Amy '--------------

,-( C_M_S /_C_M_C S--;,) i ______ __l.(. b )( 6 )~ _____ ___;---------, 
(b)(6) : Rodriguez, Matthew 

~(C_M_S--,-/C_M_C_S.,.,...)i ----------,-(b'""""')C7":(_6·.,_) --------'-------~ 
(b)(6) jSmith, Carrie '--------------~ 

,_(C_M_S_/C_M_C_SJ~-----~(b)(G) _______________ ~---------, 
(b)(6) i Moore, Kevin E '--------------~ 

[kevin.moore@uhc.com]; Cope, Tristan (CMS/OACT)i (b)(6) 
------·-·-·-·-·-· 

'----~~ ________ _,_(b)(G)'--------------~i Smith, Jessica 

r-l(C_M~S/_O_AC_T~~ ______ ([bb)-·-·-(·-·-6-)---~------.I Brooks, Bill (CMS/CMCS) 

~----------------------------~-Roberts, Shantrina 
(CMS/CMCS)i (~K~)==========--------. 
'--------------~l?.K6J i Opheim, Michelle D. 
(CMS/CMCS) [Michelle.Opheim@cms.hhs.gov]; Hickey, Jessica (CMS/CMCS)i (_b)(G~) ____ _,____ 

l~)_(?J 
Tillman-Boyd, Sabrina (CMS/CMCS)i l~)_(?~-------
'-----~--------~(~)_~) i Chickering, Maria 
__(CMS/CMCS)_i (b)(6)L...,-,.~----_,_-----~ 

(b)(6) i· Delvecchio, Lynn 

(CMS/CMCS)i (b)(6) _____________________ --, 
'-------------~-!.>).@ ____________ ~ 

CC: Larson, Riley [Riley.Larson@fticonsulting.com]; Nesbit, Sonja [Sonja.Nesbit@fticonsulting.com]; Rylan Austin 
[Rylan.Austin@wellcare.com]; Christopher M. Priest [Christopher.M.Priest@CENTENE.COM]; Cozza, Stephen 
[scozzo@amerihealthcaritas.com]; Thompson, Courtnay [cthompson@selecthealthofsc.com]; Baldwin, Hannah 
[hbaldwin@GatewayHealthPlan.com]; Hashim, Kamran [Kamran.Hashim@MolinaHealthCare.com]; Wendy 
Morriarty [Wendy_Morriarty@horizonblue.com]; Ingham, Amy [amy.ingham@anthem.com]; Paris, Katherine 
[katherine_paris@uhc.com]; Lovelace, John [LovelaceJG@UPMC.EDU]; Bennett, Andrea D 
[BennettA10@cvshealth.com]; Nicolas Wilhelm [Nicolas.Wilhelm@CENTENE.COM]; Mercede, Ashley 
[amercede@amerihealthcaritas.com]; Donna Stidham [DonnaS@ahf.org]; Owen Voutsinas-Klose [ovklose@sso.org]; 
Fraser, Layla (CMS/OACT)i • (~ll~) -·-

(b)(6) I Romanov, Daria 
(CMS/OACT)i (!?J!.~ 

(!?X~). ! Breyan, Marie 
(CMSLOACT)i (b)(G) 

(!?li~) j Klunk, William 

(CMS/OACT~ (b)(6) 

-~K~J.- !Snow, Michael 

(CMS/OACT)i (b)(6) 
(b).t6) .)Brady, Shaun 

(CMS/OACT~ (b)(6) 
.!.>).@_ i Lizonitz, Joseph 

(CMS/OACT)i (b)(6) _____ 

l?.)l~ i Jeremenko, Norina 
(CMS/OACT~ (b )(6) ___________ 
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Subject: 
Location: 

Start: 
End: 

~------------------'(b)(6)~------------~!Skoric, Marko 
,(_,._C_M_,S/'-O_A_CT_,)_i._ _____ ______,(_~)_(~,_) --------'-------~ 

(b)(G) i Flamm, Mordechai ~---~---------~ 
(CMS/OACT)i (b)(6) _________ _ 

,...;.-------'-==========" 
~--------------(!>)!.~ i Lausch, Kersten L 
[kersten.lausch@uhc.com]I (b)(G) : Danielle Pavliv [DPavliv1@humana.com]; Smith, Carrie A. 
(CMS/CMCS) [Carrie.Smith@hhsgov.onmicrosoft.com]; Smith, Jessica F. (CMS/OACT) [Jessica.Smith­
clean@hhsgov.onmicrosoft.com]; Romanov, Daria (CMS/OACT) [Daria.Romanov@hhsgov.onmicrosoft.com]; Burch 
Mack, Rebecca M.(CMS/CMCS) [Rebecca.BurchMack@hhsgov.onmicrosoft.com]; Gentile, Amy A. (CMS/CMCS) 
[Amy.Gentile@hhsgov.onmicrosoft.com]; Breyan, Marie (CMS/OACT) [Marie.Breyan@hhsgov.onmicrosoft.com]; 
Rodriguez, Matthew (CMS/CMCS) [Matthew.Rodriguez@hhsgov.onmicrosoft.com]; Gibson, Alexis E. (CMS/CMCS) 
[alexis.gibson@hhsgov.onmicrosoft.com]; Brown, Katie [Katie.Brown2@fticonsulting.com]; Lizonitz, Joseph 
(CMS/OACT) [Joseph.Lizonitz@hhsgov.onmicrosoft.com]; Cope, Tristan P. (CMS/OACT) 
[Tristan.Cope@hhsgov.onmicrosoft.com]; Lueth, Teresa [teresa.lueth@elevancehealth.com]; Berstler, Chelsey L 
[chelsey.berstler@uhc.com]; Brooks, Bill D. (CMS/CMC?.}(Bill.Brooks@b_h_sgov.onmicrosoft.com); __ l:!i:!.IJ.r:r:!i:!.r:.i.<.!:l_~~ther 
[hallmanh@upmc.edu]: Siler-Price. Mara (CMS/CMCS)i (b)(6) i 

i • l~)J~) ·-·-·-·- -·-·-·-· !· Samantha Ann 

Thompson [sthompson@mhpa.org]; Viohl, Jeff [jviohl@sso.org]; Punch, Bonnie M [bonnie_m_punch@uhc.com]; 
JEREMY O GREENFIELD [JOGREENF@sentara.com]; Brock, Randall J. [randall.brock@elevancehealth.com]; May, 
Jessica (CMS/FCHCO)i (~){§.) i 

~-------------__.l?.llf?. i Ingham, Amy 
[amy.ingham@elevancehealth.com]; Baldwin, Hannah [hbaldwin@highmarkwholecare.com]: Davis, Lorie 
[LDavis@highmarkwholecare.com]; Loizias, Alex (CMS/CMCSj (b)(G) 

'-----·-----
~-------------~.!.>)(~L. i; Stephanie Myers 
[sdmyers@mhpa.org]; CHRISTINA NUCKOLS [SXNUCKOL@sentara.com]; Michelle Proser [mproser@mhpa.org]; 
Peter Wegielnik [Peter.Wegielnik@centene.com]; Nicolas Wilhelm [nwilhelm@mhpa.org] 

[EXTERNAL] [EXTERNAL] MHPA and CMS - Quarterly Meeting~---------
https://cms.zoomgov.comi (l?.l(~),__ ________ __, 

3/23/2023 7:00:00 PM 
3/23/2023 8:00:00 PM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

Agenda Items 
MHPA Letter on Access 
Risk Mitigation Comment Opportunity 

PHE unwinding/waivers/COVID treatment and testing 
Informational Bulletin: Health Care-Related Taxes and Hold Harmless Arrangements 

ILOS Guidance 

John Giles is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom Gov meeting. 

Join ZoomGov Meeting 

_ht_t~p_s:~//_c_m_s_.z_o_o_m~g~o_v._c_o_m-'-i) _________ ~(b){6), _________ ~ 

Meeting I D: L, _______ {~)_(!>L _______ j 

Password :l_, (b )(6) __ i 

One tap mobile 

{b}{6} f US (San Jose) 
~-----~---~l US (New York) 
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Dial by your location 
+1 669 254 5252 US (San Jose) 
+1 646 828 7666 US (New York) 
833 568 8864 US Toll-free 

Meeting ID ~--·-·-·-·-J.b )(61.__ _______ ! 
Password L.Jl?l(§L._.! 
Find your local number: https://cms.zoomgov.com/u/aBsE47I4h 

Join by SIP 
,---~ 

Password:i (l?.K~J,_"'----------~ 
sid (b)(G) ~-----~ 

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

CMS04745cv1712 



Appointment 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 
Location: 

Start: 
End: 

_M_a_rt_in_o_, _M_a_ria_(C_M_S_/O_L)~i _________ (b)(6~) -----------~ 

~---------~(_b)(6)~---------~ 
5/4/2023 8:37:17 PM 

,_H_o_w_e,_R_o_ry_(C_M_S_/_C_M_C_S ..... )i ________ .,_,(~J~....._-------~-~ 
~----,-----------___.,~X~---------,-------~! Kirchgraber, Kate 
(CMS/OL): (b)(6) 

~------;==========="'~""-W""'6=========------~i Wiley, Evelyn 
(CMS/CM CS)! b)(GL_ ________ _ 
~---.----------____,,~J~,,....._ ____ ___,,--------~' Chadwick, Alpheus 

_(CMS/OL)L=. ========'~='~)-='-=1~'""-l,=======·='.-_j _______ _ 

i~--,--....,....---------~(b)(G)~------------~: Howell, Cherie 
_,_(C_M_S-'-/O_L-'-')i ______ ___,(b)(6)'--------~------~ 

(b)(6) i Loverde, Maria ~--~----------~ --------------~ 

l

(CMS/OL)[ (bJ(!•b) (G) i I Gomez, Olivia (CMS/OL) 

. . Lewandowski, David ~----------------------------~ 
(CMS/OL)i 

INTERNAL CMS Prep for Hold Harmless (Provider Tax) Calls 

https://cms.zoomgov.com! -·-·-·-·-·-·-(b)(6.,__ ________ ~ 

5/8/2023 3:00:00 PM 
5/8/2023 3:30:00 PM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Required 
Attendees: 

Howe, Rory (CMS/CMCS); Kirchgraber, Kate (CMS/OL); Wiley, Evelyn (CMS/CMCS); Chadwick, Alpheus (CMS/OL); 
Howell, Cherie A. (CMS/OL) (Cherie.Howell@cms.hhs.gov); Loverde, Maria (CMS/OL); Gomez, Olivia (CMS/OL); 
Lewandowski, David (CMS/OL) 

Hey Rory-feel free to invite whoever else you need from CMCS to this prep. 

Maria Martino is inviting you to a scheduled ZoomGov meeting. 

Join ZoomGov Meeting 

'-'-ht=t=p=s:LJ.//--"c-'-'-m-'-=s=.z=o--=-o-'-'-m=g=o-'-v.=c-=-o'-'-m""') _________ ____J(b )_(6~) ---------~ 

Meeting ID L_ ________ (b )(6) ___________ ! 
Password L.Jl?l(§L._.i 

One tap mobile 

(b}{6} ! US (San Jose) 
~-----~! US (New York) 

Dial by your location 

+1 669 254 5252 US (San Jose) 

+1 646 828 7666 US (New York) 

833 568 8864 US Toll-free 

Meeting ID L_ __________ (b)(6) ___________ i 

Find your local number: https://cms.zoomgov.com/u/a5JQlq75R 
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Join by SIP 
,------, 

Password :L_ __ (b)(6) _ ___: 
! =---------

s i g (b)_(~) 

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

_W_ile_y_, E_v_e_ly_n_(C_M_S_/_C_M_C_S)~i ________ ~(l?.ll~.~-----------
.__ ____________ _____,(l:?.ll~),___ ____________ __, 
5/5/2023 2:07:00 PM 

~H_o_w_e,'-R_o_ry'---'-(C_M_S-'--/C_M_CS--"j _______ ~(b)(6)'-- ______ ~ __ _ 

'-----~--------~bJ1~~----------,------~i Maccarroll, Amber 
-'(_CM_S--'-/_CM_CS--'-'-)i ______ ------'(b)(6) ________________ ~-----~ 
'--------------~(b)(G)__ : Silanskis, Jeremy 
(CMS/CMCS)i (b)(G) 

'---,----,----------~!?ll~.~------~------~ Arnold, Charlie 
,_,_(C_M_S....:../_CM_CS....:..)'=! =========='-~_)J~L. ______ _ 
'-------===========lbc:!,_)1"=-~======-------~i Kirchgraber, Kate 
__,_(C_M_S--'-/_O---'-L)L-i ______ ____._(~ll6) _______ __;.__ ______ ~ 
.__ ___________ ~(b)(G),___ ___________ ~ 

Canceled: Canceled: Hold: Harmless request -TX, FL, VA and NV 

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

~L_ov_e_rd_e..:....1 _M_a_ri_a ..:....(C_M_S....:.../_0---'L~,_! -------········· (b)(6.._) ___________ _ 

~----------~.!.>)(~).-----------~ 
5/5/2023 5:24:58 PM 

~M_a_rt_in_o....:...1 _M_a_ri_a ..:....(C_M_S....:.../_O---'L).,_i ________ (!>JJ~.,__ _______ .,___ __ 

~---,------------l~).(?) _____ --,---------~i Kirchgraber, Kate 

,.(~CM~S/_O~L)!,~-----~b.l(?~------~------. 
~------------~(b)(G)~----~-------~i· Lewandowski, David 

...,_(C_M_S..:.../O_L...!.1.)! ______ _..(~ll~,--------'---------

'-,--,-------,-------------'(pJ1~,_) -------------~! Howe, Rory 
,-'-(C_M_S~/C_M_C_S-"-)i _______ (~).(~,__------~------

(~J.{~) i Wiley, Evelyn (CMS/CMCS) .,...._------------· ; 

(b)(6) i 

Call w/ Sen. Warner and Sen. Cortez Masto offices re: Hold Harmless Agreements 

https://cms.zoomgov.comi ........... (b)!6,__ ________ _; 

5/9/2023 7:00:00 PM 
5/9/2023 7:30:00 PM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Required 
Attendees: 

Martino, Maria (CMS/OL); Kirchgraber, Kate (CMS/OL); Lewandowski, David (CMS/OL); Howe, Rory (CMS/CMCS); 

Wiley, Evelyn (CMS/CMCS) 

This is a call with staff from Sen. Warner (VA) and Sen. Cortez Masto's (NV) offices regarding the CMS 
Informational Bulletin on hold harmless agreements. Staff are asking for more context on the bulletin, the goals 
of the bulletin, and what it's trying to address. Staff from Senate Finance Committee may also join. 

Maria Loverde is inviting you to a scheduled ZoomGov meeting. 

Join ZoomGov Meeting 

_htt_p~s_:/_/c_m_s._zo_o_m~go_v_.c_o_rru---,_i __________ ____,(b)(6,_) --------------

Meeting ID: i .......... J~).(§.L ......... i 

PasswordL . .Jb )(6) ...... ! 

One tap mobile 

~----~(----b)~(G~) ___ ~!US (San Jose) 

CMS04749cv1712 



(b)(G) !US (New York) ~---~~~---~ 

Dial by your location 

+ 1 669 254 5252 US (San Jose) 

+ 1 646 828 7666 US (New York) 

833 568 8864 US Toll-free 

Meeting ID:!._ _________ ( b )( 6) ________ ___! 

Password:i.__J_b )(6) ____ ] 

Find your local number: https://cms.zoomgov.com/u/axBA26S72 

Join by SIP 

Password:i ____ __(_b )(6) _____ ! 

filP]~i ----~(b)(G) _____ ~ 

This meeting may be recorded. The host is responsible for maintaining any official recordings/transcripts of this 
meeting. If recorded, this meeting becomes an official record and shall be retained by the host in their files for 3 
years or if longer needed for agency business. If a recording intends be fully transcribed or is being captured 
for the purpose of creating meeting minutes, the host shall retain the record in their files for 3 years or if no 
longer needed for agency business, whichever is later. 
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Appointment 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 

Start: 
End: 

Wiley, Evelyn (CMS/CMCS)i 

._ ____________ __,(_~)_(~,_) -------------' 
5/8/2023 4:51:37 PM 
Howe, Rory (CMS/CMCS)i (!>)(~. 

~---~--------~~ll6) ______ ~ ______ i Maccarroll, Amber 
(b)(G) (CMS/CM CS). 

'-----,-----------l~)_(~~------------~j Silanskis, Jeremy 
,-'-(C_M_S_/C_M_C_S~)i ------~(b)(G) _______ ~----------, 
~------------~(b)(G) ! Arnold, Charlie 
)._CM_S~/_CM_C_S""~~ ------~(b)(G)~------------
! l~)_l6) __________ ~ 

Canceled: Canceled: Hold: Harmless request -TX, FL, VA and NV 

5/10/2023 6:00:00 PM 
5/10/2023 6:30:00 PM 

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

Neda Jasemi [neda.jasemi@medicaiddirectors.org] 

2/22/2023 1:51:50 PM 
Lane, Robert (CMS/CMCS)i (b)(6) 

-----------'-------, 

.__ _____________ _,,(~1(~),__ _____ ~------~i Bonelli, Anna 

_(C_M_S_/C_M_C_S)~i ------~(~_)_~~)------------~ 
'-----~----------(~)_(~) :Ferguson, Dorothy 
~(C_M_S_/C_M_C_S~)i ______ ~(,b)16~-------------
'-----,--------:============'(!?)J~ i Gavens, Jay 
.-(C_M_S_/C_M_C_S).._i ______ ___,(b)(6) ________________________ ~ 

I 

• (b)(G) Howe,Rory(CMS/CMCS) 

~-------------------------------~Lindsey Browning 
[lindsey.browning@medicaiddirectors.org]; Tom Betlach [Tom@Speirehcs.com]; Jack Rollins 
[jack.rollins@medicaiddirectors.org]; Hannah Maniates [Hannah.Maniates@medicaiddirectors.org] 
Maureen.Sharp@azahcccs.gov; linnea.osborne@alaska.gov; Flake.Oakley@Medicaid.Alabama.gov; 
Jason.Callan@dhs.arkansas.gov; Jeffery.Tegen@azahcccs.gov; Lori.Walker@dhcs.ca.gov; joshua.block@state.co.us; 
erin.gates@state.co.us; bettina.schneider@state.co.us; greg.tanner@state.co.us; mike.gilbert@ct.gov; 
nicholas.venditto@ct.gov; angelique.martin@dc.gov; darrin.shaffer@dc.gov; Thomas.Wallace@ahca.myflorida.com; 
rkim@dch.ga.gov; lisa.walker@dch.ga.gov; enouchi@dhs.hawaii.gov; jhavig@dhs.state.ia.us; 
jslayba@dhs.state. ia. us; jsteenb@dhs.state.ia.us; Julie Lovelady [jlovela@dhs.state.ia.us]; 
Elizabeth.Kriete@dhw.idaho.gov; Aaron.Howard1@dhw.idaho.gov; dan.jenkins@illinois.gov; 
Paul.Bowling@fssa.lN.gov; Kathleen.Leonard@fssa.lN.gov; Leslie.Melton@fssa.lN.gov; Allison.Taylor@fssa.lN.gov; 
Mark.S.Heim@ks.gov; Steve.Bechtel@ky.gov; amy.richardson@ky.gov; Daniel.cocran@la.gov; Pam.diez@la.gov; 
Andrew.perilloux@la.gov; Virginia.brandt@la.gov; Mohamed.Sesay@state.ma.us; mike.levine@state.ma.us; 
Kristen.E.Jefferies@state.ma.us; jennifer.mcilvaine1@maryland.gov; benjamin.mann@maine.gov; 
KeislingB@michigan.gov; rutledgep1@michigan.gov; sarah.orange@state.mn.us; Tony.Brite@dss.mo.gov; 
Shawn.Brice@dss.mo.gov; Kate McEvoy [kate.mcevoy@medicaiddirectors.org]; 
jennifer.wentworth@medicaid.ms.gov; julia.lerche@dhhs.nc.gov; adam.levinson@dhhs.nc.gov; 
robrigewitch@nd.gov; Jeremy.Brunssen@nebraska.gov; Athena.Gagnon@dhhs.nh.gov; henry.lipman@dhhs.nh.gov; 
Matthew.Shaw@dhs.state.nj.us; Robert.Durborow@dhs.state.nj.us; jennifer.jacobs@dhs.state.nj.us; 
JasonS.Sanchez@state.nm.us; Elisa.Walker-Moran2@state.nm.us; tiffany.lewis@dhcfp.nv.gov; 
Michael.ogborn@health.ny.gov; thomas.chapman@medicaid.ohio.gov; craig.figi@medicaid.ohio.gov; 
Aaron.Morris@okhca.org; DAVID.BADEN@dhsoha.state.or.us; dsharar@pa.gov; anrace@pa.gov; dhamme@pa.gov; 
riesmit@pa.gov; joeyer@pa.gov; mtraynor@pa.gov; Katie.Alijewicz@ohhs.ri.gov; Charles.Plungis@ohhs.ri.gov; 
Dezeree.Hodish@ohhs.ri.gov; grant.porter@ohhs.ri.gov; Thomas.Phillip@scdhhs.gov; william.aaron@tn.gov; 
zane.seals@tn.gov; Trey.Wood@hhsc.state.tx.us; jcurless@utah.gov; jamiesorenson@utah.gov; egrant@utah.gov; 
echacon@utah.gov; chris.gordon@dmas.virginia.gov; thomas.gates@dmas.virginia.gov; 
janet.mulligan@dmas.virginia.gov; nick.merciez@dmas.virginia.gov; limor.spalt@dmas.virginia.gov; 
tracy.oconnell@vermont.gov; megan.atkinson@hca.wa.gov; Angela.Visser@hca.wa.gov; 
KristaE.Willing@dhs.wisconsin.gov; Becky.A.Manning@wv.gov; mandy.d.carpenter@wv.gov; 
jesse.springer@wyo.gov; matt.hager@wyo.gov; eric.mcvicker@wyo.gov; Patrick.Rooney@vermont.gov; Gagnon, 
Athena [Athena.K.Gagnon@dhhs.nh.gov]; Hood, Joseph [joseph.hood@dch.ga.gov]; Durboraw, Robert J. 
[Robert.Durborow@dhs.nj.gov]; Shaw, Matthew J. [Matthew.Shaw@dhs.nj.gov]; Smith, Renee (HCA) 
[renee.smith@hca.wa.gov]; Cambron, Barry [Barry.Cambron@medicaid.alabama.gov]; 
madina.cavendish@hca.wa.gov; brad.livingston@scdhhs.gov; jason.simmons@state.sd.us; 
lauryn.walker@dhhs.nc.gov; Butler,Rachel (HHSC) [Rachel.Butler@hhs.texas.gov]; lrhodes@dch.ga.gov; 
kim.morris@dch.ga.gov; brian.lipton1@dch.ga.gov; Goldie, Unkyong H (DHSS) [unkyong.goldie@delaware.gov]; 
Joshua.Aidala@delaware.gov; Michele.Stant@delaware.gov; Metayer, Lauren [Lauren.Metayer@maine.gov]; 
Robyn.Forbes@ahca.myflorida.com; johnathan.s.lemman@ks.gov; Bankston, Ashley 
[Ashley.Bankston@medicaid.alabama.gov]; Lewis, Rachel [rachel.lewis1@dch.ga.gov]; 
john.mcintosh@medicaid.alabama.gov; Harrington, Lindy@DHCS [Lindy.Harrington@dhcs.ca.gov]; 
melorine.mokri@state.mn.us; Ashby, Ana G (DHS) [Ana.Ashby@state.mn.us]; Bilse,Brittani (HHSC) 
[Brittani.Bilse@hhs.texas.gov]; Douglass,Mirsa (HHSC) [Mirsa.Douglass@hhs.texas.gov]; NAMDGUEST 
[NAMDGUEST@medicaiddirectors.org]; kimberly.d.pelland@ohhs.ri.gov; Haas, Eric [ehaas@nd.gov]; 
Chelsea.a.Guest@state.or.us; GUEST Chelsea A [Chelsea.A.GUEST@dhsoha.state.or.us]; Terra.serpette@alaska.gov; 
Rachel.smith@alaska.gov; caitlin.pelletier@dmas.virginia.gov; Bryce Barker [bryce.barker@wyo.gov]; 
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linda.rascoe@dhhs.nc.gov; Melissa Laufer Lewis [mllewis@dhcfp.nv.gov]; Lynnette Aaron [L.aaron@dhcfp.nv.gov]; 
Evans Janell R [JANELL.R.EVANS@dhsoha.state.or.us]; Beaulieu, Emily A (DOH) [emily.beaulieu@alaska.gov]; Cinthia 
Luevano [cluevano@dhcfp.nv.gov]; regina.a.mccormick@wv.gov; Lisa Angelos (DHHS) <langelos@utah.gov> 
[langelos@utah.gov] 

Subject: 
Location: 

NAMD: CFO Affinity Group~-----------------------­
https://us06web.zoom.us/; {b}{6} i 
https://us06web.zoom.us)~----------~~----~~----------~! 

Start: 3/6/2023 7:30:00 PM 
End: 3/6/2023 8:30:00 PM 
Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

Good Afternoon, Medicaid CFOs-

This is your 2022 calendar invite for NAMD's CFO Affinity Group. If you are planning on forwarding this invite, 
please let me know. That way I can include your colleague on our contact list, and they can receive all of our 
agenda items, key takeaways, and latest intel. 

Reach out if you have any questions! 

Best, 
Neda 

Neda Jasemi, NAMD is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

Join Zoom Meeting 

_ht_t~p_s:~//_u_s_06_w_e_b_._zo_o_m_.u~s/....._1 __________ _,(b)(6)~---------~ 

Meeting I_ D L_ ________ (!>)_{.~L. _______ j 
Passcodei_ ___ (b )(6) ____ i 
One tap mobile 

(
b)(6) ~ US (Washington DC) 

~--------~~ US (Chicago) 

Dial by your location 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 

Meeting I DL ________ (b)(G) ________ ___: 

Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kb5xNlscjw 
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Message 

From: ~K_at_c_h_(s_h_e/_h_er_),_H_a_n_na_h_(_CM_5/_0_A~i --------~(b)(G) ________ ~ 
~----------~ .. !.>}@ ___________ ~ 

Sent: 2/17/2023 5:32:07 PM 
To: ,_E_lli_s~(s_h~e/_h_er~L.,~K~y_la~(_CM~5/~O_A~)_,! ________ (~}(6) _______ ___;__, 

,L..- _____________ (_.~)_(§.,_) _____________ ~i_A--,r,guello, Andres (05/105) 

{b ){6) i; Hitchcock, Angela ~-----,================================,--------
(CM 5 / O A) i !_>J{~ 

.__ ____________ ____,_l:_>.l(§,__ ____________ ~i Cabinet Affairs Report 
[Cabinet-Affairs-Report@hhsgov.mail.onmicrosoft.com] 

CC: 
,------'------------~ 

~I R_ic_h_a_rd_s_on__,_(s_h---'e/_h_e_,_r)'-, E_r_in_(,_C_M_5-'-/0_A~)""(i _b __ )_(_
6 
__ ) __ _,,(~l~ .... ) _______ _,

1

;j Harris, Wil 
1 
( CM

5
/OA) 

_ . Bellios, Taula 
....,.(C-:-:M--:-5-,--/:-:-0--,-5P=-=R,...,,j-----------------,-----------~ 

~ Armstead, Andrea '---------------~.......,_-------,--------~ 
(CM5/OA)i (b)(6) 

~------------(!>).(~1------------~ 
Subject: RE: RE: CM5's submission - Feb 14, 2023 

This CIB is being released today. 

From: Ellis (she/her), Kyla (CMS/OA) <Kyla.Ellis@cms.hhs.gov> 

Sent: Friday, February 17, 2023 12:30 PM 

To: Arguello, Andres (OS/IOS) <Andres.Arguello@hhs.gov>; Hitchcock, Angela (CMS/OA) 

<Angela.Hitchcock@cms.hhs.gov>; Cabinet Affairs Report <Cabinet-Affairs-Report@hhsgov.mail.onmicrosoft.com> 

Cc: Richardson (she/her), Erin (CMS/OA) <Erin.Richardson@cms.hhs.gov>; Harris, Will (CMS/OA) 

<William.Harris@cms.hhs.gov>; Bellios, Taula (CMS/OSPR) <Toula.Bellios@cms.hhs.gov>; Armstead, Andrea (CMS/OA) 

<Andrea.Armstead@cms.hhs.gov>; Katch (she/her), Hannah (CMS/OA) <Hannah.Katch@cms.hhs.gov> 

Subject: RE: CMS's submission - Feb 14, 2023 

+Hannah. 

From: Arguello, Andres (OS/IOS) <Andres.Arguello@hhs.gov> 

Sent: Thursday, February 16, 2023 8:55 PM 

To: Hitchcock, Angela (CMS/OA) <Angela.Hitchcock@cms.hhs.gov>; Cabinet Affairs Report <Cabinet-Affairs­

Report@hhsgov.mail .onm icrosoft.com > 

Cc: Richardson (she/her), Erin (CMS/OA) <Erin.Richardson@cms.hhs.gov>; Ellis (she/her), Kyla (CMS/OA) 

<Kyla.Ellis@cms.hhs.gov>; Harris, Will (CMS/OA) <William.Harris@cms.hhs.gov>; Bellios, Taula (CMS/OSPR) 

<Toula.Bellios@cms.hhs.gov>; Armstead, Andrea (CMS/OA) <Andrea.Armstead@cms.hhs.gov> 

Subject: RE: CMS's submission - Feb 14, 2023 

Hi Angela, 

We received the following follow-up from Cabinet Affairs. Can you let us know answers to their questions tomorrow 

before 12 pm? Thanks! 

"Can you please confirm if this happens tomorrow or what the anticipated date is if not tomorrow?i (b)(5) 

(b)(5) 
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• [CLOSE HOLD] Informational Bulletin: Health Care-related Taxes and Hold Harmless Arrangements Involving 
Redistribution of Medicaid Payments Bulletin: On/about February 17th, CMS will release an informational 
bulletin on Health Care-related Taxes and Hold Harmless Arrangements Involving the Redistribution of Medicaid 
Payments." 

From: Hitchcock, Angela (CMS/OA) <Angela.Hitchcock@cms.hhs.gov> 

Sent: Wednesday, February 15, 2023 12:51 PM 
To: Arguello, Andres (OS/1OS) <Andres.Arguello@hhs.gov>; Cabinet Affairs Report <Cabinet-Affairs-Report@hhs.gov> 
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

Okay, thanks! 

From: Arguello, Andres (OS/1OS) <Andres.Arguello@hhs.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, February 15, 2023 11:50 AM 
To: Hitchcock, Angela (CMS/OA) <Angela.Hitchcock@cms.hhs.gov>; Cabinet Affairs Report <Cabinet-Affairs­
Report@hhs.gov> 
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

This is perfect-thank you! 

From: Hitchcock, Angela (CMS/OA) <Angela.Hitchcock@cms.hhs.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, February 15, 2023 11:44 AM 
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

Hi Andres, 

Please see the attached update which includes a link to the actual report, for more information. Please let us know if 
you need anything additional. Thank you! 

From: Arguello, Andres (OS/1OS) <Andres.Arguello@hhs.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, February 15, 2023 8:31 AM 
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

Thanks Angela. Can we include a bit more information on the models we're advancing? A few more sentences should do 

it. We think this will be of interest to raise to POTUS. 
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o Drug Pricing Executive Order Report: On/about February 14th, CMS will 
release to the public a report on new CMS Innovation Center models that 
the Secretary has selected to test to lower drug prices. The report was 
required per executive order and was delivered to the Assistant to the 
President for Domestic Policy on January 17th. 

From: Hitchcock, Angela (CMS/OA) <Angela.Hitchcock@cms.hhs.gov> 

Sent: Tuesday, February 14, 2023 2:50 PM 

To: Cabinet Affairs Report <Cabinet-Affairs-Report@hhs.gov> 

Cc: Richardson (she/her), Erin (CMS/OA) <Erin.Richardson@cms.hhs.gov>; Ellis (she/her), Kyla (CMS/OA) 

<Kyla.Ellis@cms.hhs.gov>; Harris, Will (CMS/OA) <William.Harris@cms.hhs.gov>; Bellios, Taula (CMS/OSPR) 

<Toula.Bellios@cms.hhs.gov>; Arguello, Andres (OS/IOS) <Andres.Arguello@hhs.gov>; Armstead, Andrea (CMS/OA) 

<Andrea.Armstead@cms.hhs.gov> 

Subject: CMS's submission - Feb 14, 2023 

All, 

Please find attached CM S's Cabinet Report submission for this week. As always, please let us know if you have any 
questions. 

Thank you, 

Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) 
Special Assista_nt, Office of the Administrator 

i_ _______ (_b )(6) ________ ! angela.h itchcock@cms.hhs.gov 
7500 Security Blvd., C5-24-05 
Baltimore, MD 21244-1850 
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